
CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES 
 

January 22, 2013 
 
The City Council of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in a conference at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Municipal Building Conference Room on the 22nd day of January, 2013, and notice and agenda of the meeting were 
posted at the Municipal Building at 201 West Gray, and the Norman Public Library at 225 North Webster 24 hours 
prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
 

 PRESENT:   Councilmembers Castleberry, Gallagher, Griffith, 
Jungman, Kovach, Lockett, Spaulding, Williams, 
Mayor Rosenthal 

 
 ABSENT: None 
 
Item 1, being: 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CURBSIDE RECYCLING PROGRAM AND EVALUATION OF REQUEST 
FOR PROPOSALS RECEIVED ON JANUARY 10, 2013. 
 
Mr. Ken Komiske, Director of Utilities, said the City has three drop-off recycling centers with cardboard and 
newspaper recycling containers located at businesses throughout the City.  The City also has a Compost Facility and an 
annual Household Hazardous Waste event.  He said curbside recycling is another service offered to the City’s 
customers.   
 
Mr. Komiske said after voters approved a Curbside Recycling Program in 2007, the City contracted with Recycle 
America, a division of Waste Management, for a five year period beginning March 1, 2008.  Recycled items include 
No. 1 through No. 7 plastic containers; clear and colored glass; steel/tin cans and lids; aluminum cans; and 
newspapers, magazines, junk mail, phone books, and mixed office paper.  Unsorted materials are placed in 18 gallon 
bins provided by Recycle America, which are picked up weekly.  Mr. Komiske said Recycle America provides service 
to 29,500 customers recycling an average of 3,350 tons annually.   Mr. Komiske said costs for 2008 were $2.24 per 
customer, but that has increased each year and the current cost is $3.28 per customer.  The City charges $3.00 per 
month for the service through monthly utility billings, which the customer pays whether or not they use the service.  
Mr. Komiske said utility fees cannot be increased without a vote of the people.   
 
The current contract expires in 2013 and Requests for Proposals (RFP) were issued on November 30, 2012.  Bids were 
received from Recycle America, Republic, and Waste Management.  Mr. Komiske said Republic formerly known as 
Allied Waste operates the landfill the City of Norman utilizes for sanitation disposal.  Mr. Komiske asked Council if 
they want to continue weekly service using the 18 gallon recycle bins or if they would like to change to bi-weekly 
service using 96 gallon polycarts.  He highlighted three proposed options as follows: 
 
OPTION 1 – CURRENT PROGRAM 
 

DUAL STREAM CURBSIDE WEEKLY COLLECTION IN 18 GALLON BINS – SINGLE FAMILY  
REPUBLIC WASTE MANAGEMENT CITY OF NORMAN 

Rate $2.25 plus 3% Rate $3.21 plus CPI Rate $3.33 plus 3% 
5yr total = $4,375,800 5yr total = $6,247,202 5yr total = $6,474,030 
   
Glass option -$0.05 Glass option - no Glass option – no 
Rewards option $0.60 Rewards option $0.62 Rewards option – no 
   
Bin purchase $360K Bin purchase $0 Bin purchase $360K 
  



City Council Conference Minutes 
January 22, 2013 
Page 2 
 
OPTION 2 
 

SINGLE STREAM CURBSIDE BI-WEEKLY COLLECTION IN 95 GALLON BINS – SINGLE FAMILY  
REPUBLIC WASTE MANAGEMENT CITY OF NORMAN 

Rate $2.50 plus 3% Rate $2.97 plus CPI Rate $2.75 plus 3% 
5yr total = $4,870,200 5yr total = $5,770,920 5yr total = $5,349,912 
w/o carts = $0.70 each 
Total = $3,589,200 

w/o carts - $1.13 each 
Total = $3,703,020 

w/o carts = $.93 each 
Total = $3,648,012 

   
Glass option -$0.05 Glass option - no Glass option – no 
Rewards option $0.60 Rewards option $0.62 Rewards option – no 
 
OPTION 3 
 
ADD SINGLE STREAM CURBSIDE BI-WEEKLY COLLECTION FROM RECYCLING STATIONS AT 150 MULTI-

FAMILY APARTMENT COMPLEXES  
REPUBLIC WASTE MANAGEMENT CITY OF NORMAN 

Rate $2.00 plus 3% Rate $1.50 plus CPI  
5yr total = $1m770,492 5yr total = $1,335,000  
w/o dumps = $0.48 each 
Total = $1,370,172   

   
Glass option -$0.05 Glass option - no  
Rewards option $0.60 Rewards option $0.62  
 
Mr. Komiske said general conditions for all vendors include the following: 
 

• Mandatory $3 per month recycling fee charged to all urban customers, regardless if service is utilized 
• All vendors supply adequate equipment and manpower including 24 hour per day complaint/customer service 

telephone answering system 
• All vendors provide public education system with annual recycling report to customers 
• Recycling revenues are retained by vendor collecting the recyclables 
• All vendors supply Norman Municipal Authority required liability insurance and $300,000 performance bond 
• Process residuals to be handled and disposed by vendor at no cost to Norman Municipal Authority 

 
Mr. Komiske said Republic was the only vendor that provided a cost savings if glass was not included in recycling 
materials.  He said the Rewards Program is a program where customers receive points for the pounds of materials 
recycled from their neighborhood and points could be used at local businesses to purchase items.  He said rewards are 
designed to get customers more excited about recycling because they can keep track of their rewards and if they want 
more rewards, they recycle more.  He said, unfortunately, recyclables are weighed per neighborhood, not per customer, 
so anyone in that neighborhood can sign up and receive rewards even if they do not recycle themselves.  He said the 
vendor would not know if that particular customer recycled or not.   
 
Mr. Komiske said Waste Management owns the 18 gallon bins that are currently used, but the City has replaced a 
number of them because Waste Management was not being responsive to customers.  He said if Waste Management is 
awarded the contract, they would continue to use the existing bins.  If Republic were awarded the contract or if the 
City of Norman provided the service, Waste Management could request the return of their bins or request the City 
purchase the bins.   
  



City Council Conference Minutes 
January 22, 2013 
Page 3 
 
Mr. Komiske said if the bi-weekly service option using 95 gallon containers is chosen, both vendors would reduce 
their monthly fees if the City purchased the containers, which would cost approximately $1.5 million for 
30,000  containers.  Councilmember Gallagher said the recycling container seems to be similar to the City’s sanitation 
polycart and asked what it costs to replace a sanitation polycart.  Mr. Komiske said the City replaces approximately 
100 polycarts per month, but that replacement is considered part of the City’s service and there is no deposit fee or 
replacement cost to the customer.  Mr. Scottie Williams, Sanitation Department Superintendent, said most polycarts 
replaced are damaged by sanitation trucks when they are emptied.   
 
Mr. Komiske said bi-weekly service would allow recycling of cardboard.  He said the larger containers would be 
dumped into a truck and the contents compressed so the truck could hold more materials.  He said this is known as 
single stream recycling.  He said the 18 gallon bins currently used are manually sorted at the curbside and placed into 
separate compartments on the truck, which is known as split streaming recycling.  Councilmember Spaulding asked 
how the separation process would work for the 95 gallon containers.  Mr. Komiske said a Single Stream Processing 
Recovery facility was recently built by Pioneer in Oklahoma City and machinery would sort the materials.   
 
Mayor Rosenthal said if the City provided the service would existing trucks be used to pick up the recycling and 
Mr. Komiske said three additional vehicles would have to be purchased and require personnel as well.  
Councilmember Gallagher asked if the cost for three vehicles are included in the City’s bid and Mr. Komiske said yes, 
but the City would need ten months to one year lead time to purchase trucks for a recycling service.  Mayor Rosenthal 
asked what would happen in the interim and Mr. Komiske said Waste Management is willing to negotiate an extension 
of their current contract, but their willingness may depend on whether or not they were awarded the contract.  
Councilmember Castleberry asked if the City’s bid included health insurance, retirement, workers’ comp, etc., and 
Mr. Komiske said yes.  Councilmember Castleberry asked what assumptions Staff is using for health insurance, i.e., a 
3% increase per year or 20% increase per year and Mr. Komiske said it is based on 1.62% multiplier on salaries.  
Councilmember Castleberry said costs are known when using an outside vendor, but providing the service in-house 
has uncontrollable costs.  He said the cost to dispose of materials is also unknown so he would like more information 
on the City’s risk.   
 
Mr. Komiske said multi-family housing is not currently receiving curbside recycling, but there is enough of a demand 
for it that the two companies bid on the service.  He said each multi-family unit would pay the $3 fee whether they 
used the service or not.  He said dumpsters would be provided instead of multiple polycarts.  He said the difficulty 
with multi-family recycling is they do not want to give up parking spaces for dumpsters and people tend to dump 
things that are not recyclable such as sofas, mattresses, etc., which contaminates the materials so they cannot be 
recycled. 
 
Councilmember Kovach said the City of Norman provides better customer service than a contractor and he would like 
the City to have control of the service.  He hears complaints about the recycling company all the time.  He would 
strongly supports bi-weekly service and feels using 95 gallon containers would increase participation and decrease 
tipping fees at the landfill.  He said customers want a container with a lid so recyclable materials do not blow out.  He 
said the elderly and disabled cannot lift the 18 gallon bins and do not want to have to pay for wheels to convert the 
bins.   
 
Councilmember Gallagher said bi-weekly service would save on fuel and vehicle maintenance.  He asked if Pioneer 
would give the City a discounted price to dispose of recyclables or if the City would be subject to a set cost and 
Mr. Komiske said Pioneer would accept the materials, but will not guarantee a price because costs are based on a 
fluctuating market.   
 
Councilmember Lockett asked about the trend in Oklahoma and around the country for municipalities providing the 
service versus outside contractors.  Mr. Komiske said Republic owns the landfill and have the trucks, but they do not 
provide a lot of curbside recycling service in Oklahoma.  He said Republic is a huge company with businesses 
throughout the country and the cities that use their service are happy with it.  He said there did not seem to be a trend 
as each option has its pros and cons.   
 



City Council Conference Minutes 
January 22, 2013 
Page 4 
 
Councilmember Spaulding said many times, people find government services to be slow and inefficient versus private 
sector services.  He asked if the City could provide a better service than what is currently being provided and there was 
a resounding yes from Councilmembers.  Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager, said good customer service depends a lot on 
the selected vendor and their history in terms of performance.  He said there will be performance requirements in the 
contract.  Councilmember Spaulding asked if there are performance requirements in the current contract and Mr. Lewis 
said there are some provisions, but Staff is reviewing best practices around the country and feel they can tighten those 
provisions.   
 
Councilmember Kovach said whether the City provides the service or it is outsourced, the City will still be heavily 
involved through customer service and handling complaint calls.  Councilmember Spaulding agreed and said 
customers are paying the City of Norman for the service so if they are unhappy they are unhappy with the City, not the 
contractor.   
 
Councilmember Spaulding asked if the City currently has additional sanitation trucks to operate a recycling program in 
an interim period and Mr. Komiske said no.  Mayor Rosenthal asked if there would be a lag time if Republic is 
awarded the contract and Mr. Komiske said yes, both vendors said they would need approximately six months to begin 
service.  Councilmember Kovach said no matter what is decided, the City is looking at a lag time so asking Waste 
Management to extend their contract is a strong probability.  He said if he had to choose between a company that has 
little experience with curbside recycling and the City of Norman who provides a similar service and has a good 
reputation for customer service, he would choose the City.   
 
Mayor Rosenthal said she received multiple requests for a recycling program for multi-family housing and if the City 
of Norman operates the service, she would like to pursue a multi-family recycling program and Councilmember 
Kovach agreed.  Councilmember Griffith said he supports bi-weekly service and felt the City would be the best 
provider of the service if that were feasible. 
 
Councilmember Castleberry said he would like to see more detailed numbers on the City providing the service before 
making a decision.  Mayor Rosenthal felt the Finance Committee could review the feasibility of the City providing the 
service, but felt there would not be enough time to do that before a decision needs to be made.  She suggested Staff put 
together information to be reviewed at a Study Session or Conference.  Councilmember Kovach suggested Staff begin 
negotiations with Waste Management on extending the current contract and Mayor Rosenthal agreed. 
 

Items submitted for the record 
1. Memorandum dated January 17, 2013, from Kenneth Komiske, Director of Utilities, to Steve Lewis, 

City Manager, with Attachment A, Collection Options; Attachment B, Proposal Requirements; and 
Attachment C, Material Recovery Shared Revenues 

2. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “City of Norman Curbside Recycling Service,” dated January 
2013 

3. Option 1: Dual Stream Curbside Weekly Collection in 95-Gallon Bins from Single Family 
Dwellings (Current Service); Option 2: Single-Stream Curbside Weekly Collection in 18-Gallon 
Bins from Single Family Dwellings (Modified Service); and Option 3: Add Single Stream Curbside 
from Recycling Stations at 150 Multi-Family Apartment Complexes (New Service) 

 Participants in discussion 
1. Mr. Ken Komiske, Director of Utilities 
2. Mr. Scottie Williams, Sanitation Department Superintendent 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________   _______________________ ____________ 
City Clerk       Mayor 


	CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES
	The meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m.
	ATTEST:

